2012 SUBMISSIONS FOR 2013 ANNUAL TOWN MEETING
TOWN OF HARWICH - COMMUNITY PRESERVATION COMMITT

Project Submission Sheet Fiscal Year 2012-13

Community Preservation Committee

Submitter: Brooks Free Library Submission Date: October 31, 2012
Submitter’s address and phone number. Purpose: (please select all that apply)
739 Main Street O  Open Space

Harwich, MA 02645-2752 O Community Housing

Town committee or board (if applicable):
Brooks Free Library Board of
Trustees

X Historic Preservation
O Recreation

Project Name: Phase II Restoration & Preservation of Historic Brooks Free Library
Exterior

Project Description:

Phase 11 - Rehabilitation, including reconstruction and the making of extraordinary repairs
& preservation, including, but not limited to:

1. Restore and/or replace rotted siding, trim and columns. Remove shelter around door on
right side of front.

2. Paint exterior.
Phase 1 Brooks Block building, Main Street side
Phase 1l Cape Cod Five building, Main Street side and Bank Street side

Phase 111 Parking lot side of Brooks Block and Cape Cod Five buildings

How does this project help preserve Harwich’s character?

See attachment

Form: Version 2.2 Revised: June 14, 2007 Version 2.6 Revised August 12, 2010
Version 2.3 Revised September 13, 2007 Version 2.7 Revised September 8, 2011
Version 2.4 Revised June 14, 2008 Version 2.8 Revised Sept. 1, 2012

Version 2.5 Revised May 14, 2009



Project Budget: Attach project budget estimate for your project funding request. If the
request involves a Town-owned asset, provide the project’s projected operating expenses,
including maintenance.

The BFL Trustees budget $4000 annually for painting the exterior of the building each
year. That pays for the painting of 1/8th to 1/4 the of the building annually. Labor has
been donated.

Cost Estimate(s) - Attach cost estimates or firm quotes (if available) for projects involving
construction.

Land and /or Building Acquisition Projects - Attach surveys, appraisals and agreements, if
available. Please set forth name of present owner and attach copy of deed conveying
property unto present owner. In addition to property address, please provide Harwich
Assessors Office identification (Map#, Parcel #). For proposed Open Space land purchases,
be prepared to discuss public access with the Committee.

CPA Funds Received Previous Year(s) For This Project (if applicable):

Fiscal Year Total Cost CPC Funds Requested

2006-07

2007-08

2008-09

2009-10

2010-11

2011-12

2012-13 $39,000 $39,000

Totals to Date: $39,000 $39,000

If project is expected to continue over more than one year, or if funding the project via full
or partial bonding is anticipated, please detail the cost of project on the following chart
(narrative explanation should be attached on a separate sheet.

CPC Funds | Other Funding Estimated $ from
Fiscal Year Total Cost Requested Sources Other Source
2013-14 $38,000 $38,000 none
2014-15 $20,000 $20,000 none
2015-16
Total $58,000 $58,000 none




Attachment A

Brooks Free Library Historic Preservation Project
Estimate of Costs - 2nd year (2012-2013)
Cape Cod Five/Telephone Exchange Building, Main St and Bank St sides

1. Restore, replace as necessary, and preserve Damaged Siding, Trim and Structural
Elements — Cape Cod Five/Telephone Exchange Building, Main St and Bank St
sides. The four columns need restoration, one of them extensive. The shelter around
the door facing Main St will be removed, restoring the front to the way that it looked
before 1900. (Photo included.)

Materials, Labor and Contingency $16,000

2. Paint front facade and side of Cape Cod Five/Telephone Exchange Building.
Remove peeling paint, especially in areas of substantial buildup, collect and clean up
debris following specified procedures, repair, patch, prime and paint using specified
procedures and materials.

Materials and Labor $22,000
The above estimates were compiled upon consultation with John Eldredge, Town of

Harwich Maintenance Manager, Ed McManus, a historic preservation practitioner
and George Boulé, painting contractor.



Attachment B

The Trustees of the Brooks Free Library feel a sincere responsibility to preserve the Brooks
Free Library Building's historic architecture. Elected by the citizens of the Town of
Harwich, we are entrusted to vigilantly oversee and plan for the preservation and upkeep of
this historic site. We do this out of respect not only for all those who have come before us,
and have given much as caretakers of this facility, but also for Harwich residents today and
in the future, who can share with pride the evolution of the Library and its services. We are
keenly aware of the historic value of this property.

As a brief history of the Library will confirm, this project is compatible with the mission of
the town to preserve our historic buildings as significant, visible connections to our past.
Included in the State and National Register of Historic Places, Brooks Free Library formally
opened January 1, 1881. Founded by Col. Henry C. Brooks, it originally occupied the east
side of the second floor of the Brooks Block building, built in 1880 by Col. Brooks. The
Library’s connection to the Brooks family is historically significant, as the family was
successfully engaged in numerous enterprises in the town. For example, Henry’s brother,
Obed, was a founding officer of the Cape Cod Five Cents Savings Bank (originally housed
in the Greek revival building that is today part of the Brooks Library). Their brother, Sidney
Brooks, founded Pine Grove Seminary, today’s Brooks Academy Museum.

Although the Brooks family ran the library during its early years, they conveyed the
property to the Brooks Free Library Association in 1896. In 1910, the town of Harwich
accepted the gift of the Library from the Association. During the 1930s, the Brooks Block
and the Library received repairs and renovations under the Works Progress Administration.

Brooks Library continued to grow, and by the late 1960’s it was using the entire second
floor and attic of the Brooks Block. In 1967, the town purchased the former Cape Cod Five
and Cape Cod National Bank Greek revival building on the corner of Bank and Main
Streets. At the time, the building housed the “Telephone Exchange”. In 1970, the Second
District Court of Barnstable, which occupied the first floor of the Brooks Block building,
moved to Orleans. In 1972, the town voted to renovate the Brooks Block and the Telephone
Exchange buildings for library use.

Again, the Library continued to grow. After years of planning, a renovation and expansion
project of the Library was presented to residents in 1996. In May of 1996, the Harwich
Town Meeting voted unanimous support of the project. Brooks Library, which had been
temporarily housed at the Star Market Plaza in Harwich Port during the renovations and
expansion, reopened in February of 1998. It should be noted that in 1999, the project won a
Historic Preservation Award from the Massachusetts Historical Commission for successfully
maintaining the character of the building.



Attachment C

Library wins state history award

Cape Cod Times (Hyannis, MA) - Friday, May 21, 1999
Author: CAROLYN MAGNUSON

BOSTON - Harwich made one for the history books last night.

The state's historical commission last night honored the Brooks Free Library in Harwich as
one of the top historic preservation projects in Massachusetts.

The library was the winner of a 1999 Massachusetts Historical Commission Preservation
Award , which is intended to recognize achievements in preserving historic properties. The
Harwich library was one of 14 projects statewide chosen for the award.

"Both large- and small- scale, these projects have revitalized unique historic resources which
reflect the rich heritage of Massachusetts," said Secretary of State William Galvin. "Through
the work of many dedicated people, neglected resources have once again become vital
working parts of a community."

The Harwich project was an expansion of the original town library built in 1879. The town's
library was originally on the second floor of the Brooks Block in Harwich center. The town
eventually acquired both the Brooks building and the adjacent Greek Revival structure built
in 1855.

The town decided to renovate both buildings, and add an addition, to serve as a library for
the town's growing population. The architects did such a good job, library director Judith
Wallace said last night, that most people cannot tell where the old building ends and the
newer section begins.

In accepting the award , Wallace thanked the town for its support. She thanked voters for
approving the project even without state aid. She then thanked state Rep. Shirley Gomes for
helping to secure about $1.3 million from the state to help pay for the project.

Since the renovation, the library's circulation has increased 500 percent, according to library
officials.

Record Number: OFFB54109F78845B
Copyright, 1999, Cape Cod Times. All Rights Reserved.



Attachment D

A History of the Brooks Free Library

Established in 1880, Brooks Free Library was the first free public library in
Harwich. Founded by Col. Henry C. Brooks and originally known as the
Broadbrooks Free Library, the Library is part of a broader legacy left to the
town by the Brooks family. The Library has been owned and operated by the
Town of Harwich since 1910 and is governed by a 7-member elected Board of
Trustees.

Col. Henry C. Brooks

The first member of the Brooks family to make his home in Harwich was
Henry's great-grandfather, Beriah Broadbrooks, who was born in 1676 and
arrived in Harwich in 1694, the same year it was incorporated. He had fifteen
children by two different wives. By an act of the Massachusetts legislature,
passed March 14, 1806, Beriah's great-grandson, Obed Broadbrooks had the
family name changed to Brooks. Obed had nine children, including Henry, but
only a few grandchildren. Henry and his sisters, Tamesin, Harriet, and Sarah
never married. Brother Sidney married had no children. Obed owned the first
store in Harwich and his sons became businessmen, traders, and educators.



Henry Cobb Brooks was born May 16, 1824 and was Obed's youngest son. At the
age of 14, he left Harwich for Boston, where he worked as a clerk. Eventually
he became a partner in a firm supplying ships in Boston Harbor, and later built
ships and operated a sailing line to Australia. He was a prominent member of
the Ancient and Honorable Artillery Company and acquired the fitle of Major
by meritorious conduct in the Militia and that of Colonel by virtue of his
appointment on the staff of Maj. Gen. Samuel Andrews.

While Henry pursued his business in Boston, his brothers and sisters were busy
in Harwich. Obed, Jr. was a shopkeeper & merchant, commissioner of the
Mashpee Indians and was a founding officer of the Cape Cod Five Cents Savings
Bank and the Cape Cod National Bank. Formed in 1855, the bank was originally
housed in the Greek Revival building that today is part of the Brooks Free
Library. Sidney founded and built the Pine Grove Seminary, today's Brooks
Academy Museum. The school offered young people an opportunity to extend
their education beyond the elementary level, and offered courses in navigation,
mathematics, music, art, languages and other subjects. More that 1000 young
men and women, "scholars", passed through the doors of his school in its 20
year history. Sarah built and left a parsonage to the First Parish Church, known
today as First Congregational Church. In addition to serving as the first
librarian for the Brooks Free Library, sister Tamesin, who was legendary for
her business skills and temperance activities, willed Brooks Park to the Town of
Harwich.

In the 1880 Henry built a multi-use structure in Harwich Center, the Brooks
Block, to house several stores, a free public library and have other uses. Over
the years various shops occupied the first floor, including C.S. Hunt, Dry Goods
and Furniture; Frank Snow, Parlor Stoves; and Small and Snow, Curtains and
Wallpapers. Several upstairs rooms and a small apartment were also rented.
The rooms were often let to lawyers for offices or to dressmakers, milliners,
and even a barber. Rental monies from these enterprises were meant to
support the library, which was located on the east side of the second floor.



With construction of the Brooks Block complete, a reception and open house
was held at the library on Thanksgiving Day, 1880. The reference collection was
spread out on a large oak table, and the shelves held a collection of 2,500
volumes of fiction, poetry, history and biography, donated by Henry Brooks, as
well as a selection of juvenile literature and files of Boston newspapers. Plaster
busts of Shakespeare, Milton, Byron, Burns, Dickens, and Washington Irving,
which can be seen today in the 2" floor Reference area, were on display.

On January 1, 1881, the library officially opened with Miss Tamesin Brooks, age
60, serving as the first librarian. The Brooks family was very much involved in
the operation of the library. Henry Brooks built the building and conceived of
the plan to support the library. His brother Sidney and their two sisters,
Tamesin and Sarah, arranged, numbered and cataloged the collection.

In June of 1881, Pliny Nickerson of Harwich donated 40 Rogers Groups Statues
to the Library. A room adjacent to the library room was opened to house the
new collection. The Rogers Groups were plaster statues, very popular at the
time, which stood two to three feet tall and depicted themes of contemporary
America, the Civil War and everyday life.



Rogers Groups

The Brooks family ran the library through its early years. Tamesin Brooks
served as librarian without pay until her death in 1891. When other members of
the Brooks family, Sarah, and Henry Brooks Davis, found the maintenance and
managing of the library to be too difficult, an association of interested
townspeople was formed and the family conveyed the property to the Brooks
Library Association in 1896. The following year the name was changed to the
Broadbrooks Free Library Association but in 1908 it was changed back to
Brooks Free Library Association.

The February 1910 Town Meeting accepted the gift of the Brooks Free
Library, "the real estate known as the Brooks Block and the books, statuary
and personal property therein." Brooks Free Library became a municipal library,
with the transfer of property taking place in April 1910. The library was open
Saturday afternoons from 1:30 fo 5:30, and these hours remained the same
until 1947.

In 1933, Brooks Free Library received needed repairs under the Works
Progress Administration (WPA) program that was directed by the State's
Division of Public Libraries. The only expense to the town were supplies and the
housing of the workers.

The Second District court of Barnstable was moved to the first floor of the
Brooks Block in 1936 and the building was again renovated under the auspices
of the WPA. Rooms included the main courtroom, the juvenile court, and small



rooms for lawyers and probation officers. A modern heating was installed
throughout the building except for an unused room on the upper floor. Several
partitions were removed upstairs to create a large young people's room and the
Rogers Groups were moved across the hall to the south room, which was
painted a pale blue.

The library received a permanent loan from the U.S. Government of 10 pencil
sketches done by Lawrence Robbins under the WPA. The skefches were of
various Harwich scenes and vistas, some of which no longer exist, and included
the Moody Farm, Bell's Neck, the Herring River, and Pleasant Bay.

In 1947 Virginia (Ginny) Doane was hired as librarian and served in this position
for forty-two years until her retirement in 1989. Library hours were expanded
at this fime to include Tuesday and Thursday evenings, 7-9 pm, in addition fo
the Saturday afternoon hours.

The library continued to grow and by the late 1960's it was using the entire
second floor and the third floor attic. In 1967 the town purchased the Greek
Revival building next door on the corner of Bank and Main Streets, which had
begun its life in 1855 as home to Cape Cod Five Cents Savings Bank and the
Cape Cod National Bank. In 1914 the bank moved across Main St. to a building
constructed for that purpose, which now serves as Harwich Town Hall. The
building then became home to the Telephone Exchange.
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In 1970 the Second District Court moved to Orleans and Town lost its tenant
on the lower floor of the Brooks Block. The Library had grown and needed
additional space and dedicated parking. In 1971 town meeting voted to purchase
the Bank St. lot behind the Brooks Block for a parking lot for the library and in
1972 Town Meeting voted to renovate the Brooks Block and Telephone
Exchange buildings for library use. The old telephone building was turned into a
reading room with special glass cases installed to display the Rogers Groups.
The library's collection had expanded from the original 40 pieces given by Pliny
Nickerson to 69. Since the sculptor, John Rogers, had only had 80 of his pieces
ever mass-produced and cast in plaster, the collection at the library was
thought to be the largest outside of New York City.

In early March of 1976 the Boston Globe carried a large feature story on the
new interest among art collectors in Rogers Groups statuary. A few weeks
later, on April 15", while the Finance Committee met across the street at Town
Hall and a small crowd of voters gathered at the High School on Oak Street
for a special town meeting, the Brooks Library was burglarized and 56 Rogers
Groups statues were stolen. The Brooks Block did not have a security system
and thieves broke in the back door, ripped the drapes from the windows and
used them to wrap the fragile plaster statues. They carried the statues out
the back door and across the vacant lot to a waiting van. Despite a FBI
investigation that continued for years, none of the stolen Rogers Groups
statues have ever been recovered.

Automation came to the Brooks Free Library when the it joined the newly
formed Cape Libraries Automated Materials Sharing (CLAMS) consortium in
1989. Inputting of cataloging records took place over the next few years and
live circulation on the automated system began in 1991.

Like the town, the Library continued o grow, and after many years of planning,
a renovation and expansion project was presented to residents. On May 7, 1996
the Harwich Town Meeting voted unanimous support of the library renovation
project. The following month, on June 17, 1996, 65% of Harwich voters agreed
to a debt exclusion ballot vote which asked for $3.1 million dollars to fund the
project. Later a $1.3 million dollar federal Library Services and Technology Act
(LSTA) construction grant was received from the Massachusetts Board of
Library Commissioners. This LSTA grant reduced the cost of the library
renovation and expansion project for Harwich taxpayers to $1.8 million. The
Friends of Brooks Free Library contributed additional funds to purchase the
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adjacent lot on Bank St. for additional parking, to finish the basement to
create a meeting room, and to provide furnishings for the renovated facility.

Renovated and expanded Library - south side, parking lot entrance

In October 1996 Brooks Free Library moved to temporary quarters at the Star
Market Plaza in Harwich Port, thanks to a generous $1 dollar per year lease
from Tedeschi Realty. The project was complete in early 1998 and the Library
reopened in the renovated and expanded facility in February 1998. The project
won a Historic Preservation Award from the Massachusetts Historical
Commission for successfully maintaining the historic character of the building.

Current view - Brooks Free Library — along Main. St. side from west
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